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To our shareholders and friends:

Summit’s Initial Public Offering in 2006 was a watershed event that sets the stage for future growth 
and profitability.

The nearly $20 million of additional capital raised by our IPO will allow us to double our present size 
while giving shareholders greater liquidity with our listing on the NASDAQ Global Market Exchange. 

In addition to supporting growth, the added capital allows servicing larger business clients and gives us 
increased lending capacity for projects previously out of reach. 

We will be expanding our service area over the next several years starting with a new regional office in 
Petaluma opening the second quarter of 2007. As the second largest city in Sonoma County, Petaluma 
opens new opportunities for increased business in Petaluma and the Marin County market.

Consolidation of community banks into regional and national banks continues at a frenzied pace. The 
approved merger of another home town bank in 2007 will make us the second largest of five banks 
headquartered in Sonoma County. Our enhanced visibility within our service area has never been 
greater and is increasingly attracting new customers and experienced staff.

As a community bank, we have capabilities and opportunities not readily available to the behemoth 
banks. To emphasize those advantages, we developed and are just now introducing several new 
products, services and service delivery channels built around a strategy of providing complete client 
solutions tailored to meet the diverse needs of customers. 

We are very excited about these additions to existing products and services as they open new sources of 
deposits and greatly expand that area from which we will draw new clients.

Going forward, we believe the time and capital invested in 2006 and 2007 developing these initiatives 
will bring increased value to our customers, shareholders and employees.

John C. Lewis       Terrance M. Davis 
Chairman and CEO      President and COO
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Innovative Business Solutions Chooses an Innovative Bank
Innovative Business Solutions makes complex tasks simple for their clients. The 
Sonoma County-based firm founded by CEO David Tieken and CFO Bob 
Reynolds has been providing HR and payroll services to area businesses for over 
16 years. IBS brings a combination of automation and personal service into the 
equation, making it less intimidating and more accurate and efficient. 

With 900 clients, IBS needed a bank as flexible and innovative as they are. 
“When we first considered a move to Summit State Bank,” Bob explains, “our 
initial fear was, boy, we are going to slam them with activity overnight? Are they 
geared up for it?” According to the partners, the transition to Summit State went 
off without a hitch. 

The bank created an account to help IBS take advantage 
of the $1.2 billion flowing through their company every 
year. “Summit’s cash management program is so real-
time, we know at the end of the day exactly how much 
we have to invest in our money market account,” says 
Bob. Their earlier relationship with Terry Davis while 
at a previous bank made the move even more seamless. 
“Terry’s understanding of our business was part of the 
natural progression to Summit,” adds Dave.

What else do they like about Summit State? “They’re 
responsive, with strong customer service and local 
technical support. They have the same strengths as we 
do,” says Bob, “which makes them a great fit.” The one 
request they’d make of their Summit bankers: “Please 
don’t sell!”

“Summit’s cash management program is so real-time, 
we know at the end of the day exactly how much we 
have to invest in our money market account.”

Rave Reviews for 6th Street Playhouse and Summit Team 
Two years ago, imagination and belief played starring 
roles in turning a Santa Rosa historic warehouse into a 
lively 184-seat theater, the 6th Street Playhouse. It also 
took groundbreaking collaboration between diverse 
theater companies. Even though Santa Rosa Players 
presents classic musicals and Actors Theatre produces 
edgier works by contemporary playwrights, they were 
willing to overlook their differences and share a home.

Once the nonprofits joined forces, “We needed 
someone to have faith in our business plan,” says 
Executive Director Beth Craven. Summit did. The 
bank found a way to structure a construction loan to 
build the theater, even though the group was leasing, 
not buying the building. “Summit looked outside the 
box, outside the formula,” Beth says. And it’s really 
paid off. Compared to regional theaters in a national 
survey, 6th Street’s growth is off the charts, almost 
quadrupling their ticket subscriptions in two years.

Now, with momentum on their side, the playhouse 
is expanding their education program. In addition 
to drama camps and workshops that help fund their 
operations, 6th Street is bringing a free program to  
low-income schools. Supported by a Ruth W. Finley Foundation grant, the course 
finale has the children performing for their families on the big stage, under the 
bright lights. It thrills the young actors and their audience and 6th Street enjoys 
the new link to the community. What about the playhouse’s connection with 
Summit? “It’s everything,” Beth says. “As important as any relationship we have.” 

“Go to Summit Bank – first. They will listen 
to you and they will care.”

Bob Reynolds and David Tieken

A production of “Around the World in 80 Days”



Yarbrough Brothers Towing…A Reputation You Can Bank On
Since 1977, Yarbrough Brothers Towing of Santa Rosa has been helping people deal 
with inconvenient truths. Like a flat tire. A dead battery. Or a car too damaged 
to drive. Known for their outstanding service, highly competitive prices and 
distinctive yellow trucks, Yarbrough has built a reputation that they, quite literally, 
took to the bank.  

In 2004, Yarbrough’s then-owner decided to sell the 
company. Michelle and Robert Inskeep, Mike Sonza 
and Russ Loyd, all long-time employees, recognized 
a great opportunity and began looking for a way to 
purchase the business.  

The challenge was finding a lender when the majority 
of the company’s value was intangible – goodwill 
and AAA, police and freeway service contracts. After 
visiting nearly every bank in the county, they found 
two willing to hear them out. One, a large financial 
institution, turned them down. But Summit State 
Bank believed in their mission and agreed to help 
them get an SBA loan.

However, it was a complex undertaking and it didn’t 
come together overnight. “The bank was great during 
the whole process,” says Michelle. “They kept calling 
us, saying let’s see if we can make this happen.”  
Finally, everything fell into place.  

What impressed the partners most was the bank’s 
willingness to go the extra mile for them. At Summit 
State, that’s just business as usual.

“What surprised us is Summit’s willingness to 
look at something that required trust… they care 
about local business.”

Fiona and Hal Barnett

Robert and Michelle Inskeep
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Barnett Vineyards and Summit – A Good Fit
After clearing 40 acres of rocky Spring Mountain hillsides in the Napa Valley, 
Hal and Fiona Barnett planted their first grapes in 1983. Fully intending to 
sell their hand-harvested crops, the couple discovered they couldn’t let them 
go. Instead, in 1989, they launched their own wine label, releasing just 292 
cases of their mountain-grown cabernet. Today the boutique winery produces 
about 6,000 cases a year. Their Rattlesnake Hill and Spring Mountain District 
Cabernet have received some of the highest ratings in this desirable appellation. 

The Barnetts came to Summit State Bank three years ago because their current 
financial institution wasn’t helping them manage long-term interest rates. 
After interviewing a number of banks, they found a good fit with Summit 
and the custom solutions they offer. “They were really creative in the way they 
structured our financing,” says Hal. 

Fiona and Hal like the way Summit takes an active interest in their business. 
The bank’s knowledge of the vineyard’s operations made a recent expansion 
project go smoothly, and allowed 
the Barnetts to finance some 
replanting without affecting their 
cash flow. “We want people making 
decisions about our banking 
needs who know us and know the 
property, not someone sitting in San 
Francisco or New York who’s never 
met us,” Hal says. A local bank 
that understands their industry 
makes a big difference, Fiona agrees. 
“Summit’s customer service really 
stands out.”  

“Summit was really creative in the way 
they structured our financing.”



client profile 1

Flexible Redi Shade Finds Its Match
Founded in 1990, Redi Shade, Inc. creates and produces their patented 
temporary window shades in Cotati, California. Company founders, including 
CFO Kevin Wohlert, are proud their pleated window coverings are made in 
their corner of America, providing good jobs and contributing to the North 
Bay economy.

Despite competition from China, Redi Shade continues to dominate their 
product category, selling nationwide through Home Depot, Lowe’s and Wal-
Mart. The reason for their growth is simple. “We provide their retail customers 
with good service…we manage the details,” says Kevin.

Summit State Bank came into the picture seven years 
ago, when Redi Shade officers became frustrated 
with the layers of bureaucracy at a larger bank. The 
growing trust and respect between Summit and the 
manufacturer came into play when a retail client 
delayed a large project and left Redi Shade holding 
the inventory. “We ended up needing a million 
dollars, practically overnight,” Kevin says. And 
Summit got the job done.  

Kevin points out that local decision-making is another 
reason working with Summit has been smooth. He 
appreciates their flexibility and sees parallels to the 
way his business operates. “They have the creativity to 
say, ‘Tell us what you need and we’ll find a way.’”

“Summit is the can-do bank. We put them 
to the test and they’ve come through.”

Joe Netter, Kevin Wohlert, Ron Militello
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Northeast Imported Parts Buys Globally, Banks Locally
Ken Lawrence, CEO of Northeast 
Imported Parts and Accessories 
(NEIP), says that doing business 
overseas is complicated. After 
almost three decades as importer of 
OEM and aftermarket Japanese car 
parts, his team is still learning. And 
his company continues to grow, 
now stocking more than 1,800 
different top-quality replacement 
parts, providing them at discount 
prices to dealerships, parts stores 
and repair shops across the US. 

Company reps regularly visit 
Asia to maintain relationships 
and negotiate purchases. It’s their 
policy to know as much about 
Asian history, culture and business 
practices as they do automobiles 
and international finance. To them, information is their advantage, and they keep an 
open door and an open mind.  Being accessible has shaped the business, introducing 
NEIP to a product line that nearly doubled their business.

A visit from Summit State Bank was also fortuitous. When their San Francisco 
banker moved on, leaving them with no personal relationship, Controller Martin 
Thong and President Wes Shirley transferred their business to the supportive, 
proactive bank in their neighborhood – Summit. “Business is always personal,” they 
say. 

Close ties to their Summit bankers brought the company another level of profitability. 
When Wes and Martin asked to buy foreign currency forward, Summit created a 
program to make it happen. Now the firm can smooth out fluctuations by purchasing 
foreign currency three to five months in advance when the exchange rate is favorable. 
“All the services for import or export which we require, they can provide, along with 
a personal, professional touch.” says Ken.  

“Summit is a community bank that serves 
the complexities of a global business.”

John Hogan, Ken Lawrence, Wes Shirley, Martin Phong



Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain statements that are forward-looking within the meaning of the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain 
risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Actual outcomes and results may differ materially 
from those expressed in, or implied by, our forward-looking statements. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” 
“believes,” “estimates” and other similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” 
“would” and “could” are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Readers of this annual report of 
the Summit State Bank (also referred to as we, us or our) should not rely solely on the forward-looking statements 
and should consider all uncertainties and risks throughout the report. 

Forward-looking statements, by their nature, are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our future results 
and shareholder values may differ significantly from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. You are 
cautioned not to put undue reliance on any forward-looking statement. The statements are representative only as of 
the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement. However, your 
attention is directed to any further disclosures made on related subjects in any subsequent reports we may file with 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), including on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, in the event we 
become required to make such filings.

Information About Summit State Bank

Summit State Bank (the “Bank”) is a state-chartered commercial bank operating a traditional community banking 
business within our primary service area of Sonoma County in California. We operate through two branches, 
including our headquarters, in Santa Rosa, and one branch each in Rohnert Park, and Windsor and Petaluma 
(projected opening in the second quarter of 2007).

The Bank was incorporated on December 20, 1982 and commenced operations as a California state-chartered 
savings and loan in 1982. On January 15, 1999, the Bank received authority to convert its charter to a California 
state-chartered commercial bank. On July 13, 2006, the Bank completed an underwritten initial public offering 
and listed its stock on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol SSBI. The Bank’s deposits are insured by the 
FDIC in accordance with the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the related regulations.

We provide a broad array of financial services to small-to medium-sized businesses, and their owners and 
employees, professionals and professional associations, entrepreneurs, high net worth families, foundations, estates 
and to individual consumers. We believe that our principal competitive advantages are personal service, flexibility 
and responsiveness to customer needs. Our lending activities are primarily focused on commercial real estate, 
construction, and business loans to our targeted clientele.

We emphasize relationship banking and we believe we offer our customers many of the management capabilities 
of a large financial institution, together with the resourcefulness and superior customer service of a community 
bank. Through our branches and the use of technology, we offer a broad array of deposit products and services for 
both commercial and consumer customers, including electronic banking, cash management services and electronic 
bill payment. We provide a comprehensive set of loan products, such as commercial loans and leases, lines of 
credit, commercial real estate loans, Small Business Administration, or SBA, loans, residential mortgage loans, 
home equity lines of credit and construction loans. We believe that local decision making ensures that our lending 
process is fast, efficient, and focused on maintaining our high credit quality and underwriting standards.

The Bank’s only subsidiary is ALTO Service Corporation, which is a wholly owned subsidiary, incorporated in 
California. Its purpose is to act as trustee on the Bank’s deeds of trust and perform reconveyances. The assets 
of ALTO Service Corporation consist exclusively of cash on deposit with the Bank. It has no employees and its 
operations and balance sheet are not material to the Bank’s consolidated operating income or financial condition.

Selected Financial Data

10 1110 11

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

20,454$            16,668$         12,450$         12,629$          12,705$

11,031              10,386           8,968             8,450              7,929

253                   444                444                360                 360

1,321                1,859             1,338             491                 265

7,238                6,481             5,328             4,897              4,074

Income before income taxes 4,861                5,320             4,534             3,684              3,760

2,053                2,189             1,866             1,518              1,601

Net income 2,808$              3,131$           2,668$           2,166$            2,159$

Assets 312,950$          345,788$       247,772$       232,894$        219,666$

Loans, net 252,860            236,208         200,184         180,638          169,986

Earning assets 289,581            330,833         229,652         210,400          203,906

Deposits 232,974            301,754         189,337         181,945          176,517

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 31,460              15,200           32,200           25,858            20,082

Shareholders' equity 47,812              27,043           25,386           23,782            22,322

Assets 303,800$          294,615$       234,341$       227,835$        205,319$

Loans, net 248,539            222,011         189,052         190,840          174,431

Earning assets 284,906            275,919         215,435         209,357          192,148

Deposits 235,553            242,329         181,503         178,532          163,551

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 28,557              23,747           26,664           24,949            18,452

Shareholders' equity 36,768              26,396           24,504           23,072            21,832

0.70$                0.93 0.79 0.64 0.64

0.69$                0.93 0.79 0.64 0.64

calculate earnings per share - basic 4,030 3,361 3,361 3,361 3,361

calculate earnings per share - diluted 4,074 3,378 3,361 3,361 3,361

4,795 3,361 3,361 3,361 3,361

0.36 0.36 0.30 0.225 0.15

9.97 8.05 7.55 7.08 6.64

9.11 6.82 6.33 5.85 5.42

7.64% 11.86% 10.89% 9.39% 9.89%

8.60% 14.05% 13.09% 11.43% 12.19%

0.92% 1.06% 1.14% 0.95% 1.05%

52.21% 38.65% 37.78% 34.91% 23.35%

3.87% 3.76% 4.16% 4.04% 4.13%

58.60% 52.93% 51.70% 54.77% 49.72%

  interest income and noninterest income)

12.10% 8.96% 10.46% 10.13% 10.63%

14.29% 6.72% 9.24% 8.64% 8.68%

0.76% 0.21% 0.09% 0.17% 0.26%

0.93% 0.30% 0.11% 0.22% 0.33%

0.05% 0.00% 0.05% 0.00% 0.00%

1.46% 1.51% 1.56% 1.54% 1.46%

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio (noninterest expenses to net

Average equity to average assets

Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Leveraged capital ratio

Nonperforming assets to total assets

Nonperforming loans to total loans

Net chargeoffs to average loans

Return on average equity

Return on average tangible equity

Return on average assets

Dividend payout ratio

Cash dividends per share

Book value per share

Tangible book value per share

Selected ratios:

Earnings per share - diluted

Weighted average shares used to 

Weighted average shares used to 

Shares oustanding at year end 

Selected balance sheet data:

Balance sheet data - average

Selected per share data:

Earnings per share - basic

Provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income taxes

Year Ended December 31

(in thousands except per share data)

Interest Income

Net Interest Income



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion provides additional information about the financial condition of Summit State Bank 
(“the Bank”) at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 
2005 and 2004. The following analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements 
of the Bank and the notes thereto prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. 

All references to Common Shares and per share information have been adjusted for the 2-for-1 stock split issued in 
June 2006.

This discussion contains certain forward-looking information about us (See “DISCLOSURE REGARDING 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS”).

Critical Accounting Policies.  The discussion and analysis of the Bank’s results of operations and financial 
condition are based upon financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Bank’s 
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income 
and expense, and the related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements.

The Bank believes these estimates and assumptions to be reasonably accurate; however, actual results may differ 
from these estimates under different assumptions or circumstances. Material estimates that are particularly 
susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses is determined first and foremost by promptly identifying potential credit weaknesses 
that could jeopardize repayment. The Bank’s process for evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses 
includes determining estimated loss percentages for each credit based on the Bank’s historical loss experience and 
other factors in the Bank’s credit grading system and accompanying risk analysis for determining an adequate 
level of the allowance. The risks are assessed by rating each account based upon paying habits, loan to value ratio, 
financial condition and level of classifications. The allowance for loan losses was $3,736,000 at December 31, 2006 
compared to $3,617,000 at December 31, 2005.

Overview

The Bank is a community bank serving Sonoma County in California. It operates through four offices located 
in Santa Rosa, Rohnert Park and Windsor. An application to open a branch in Petaluma has been filed with the 
Bank’s regulators and it is anticipated that the office will be opened in the second quarter of 2007. The Bank was 
founded as a savings and loan in 1982 under the name Summit Savings. On January 15, 1999, the Bank converted 
its charter to a California state-chartered commercial bank and thereby became subject to regulation, supervision 
and examination by the California Department of Financial Institutions and the FDIC.

Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

The Bank’s primary source of income is net interest income, which is the difference between interest income 
and fees derived from earning assets and interest paid on liabilities which fund those assets. Net interest income, 
expressed as a percentage of total average interest earning assets, is referred to as the net interest margin. The 
Bank’s net interest income is affected by changes in the volume and mix of interest earning assets and interest 
bearing liabilities. It is also affected by changes in yields earned on interest earning assets and rates paid on 
interest bearing deposits and other borrowed funds. The Bank also generates noninterest income, including 
transactional fees, service charges, office lease income and gains on sold SBA guaranteed loans originated by the 
Bank. Noninterest expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and benefits, occupancy and equipment 

expenses and other operating expenses. The Bank’s results of operations are also affected by its provision for loan 
losses. Results of operations may also be significantly affected by other factors including general economic and 
competitive conditions, mergers and acquisitions of other financial institutions within the Bank’s market area, 
changes in market interest rates, government policies, and actions of regulatory agencies.

Net Income

For the year ended December 31, 2006, net income was $2,808,000, or $0.69 per diluted share, and return 
on average assets was 0.92%. This compares with net income of $3,131,000, or $0.93 per diluted share, for the 
year ended December 31, 2005 and a return on average assets of 1.06%. The decline in year-over-year earnings 
amounts was $323,000 or 10%. The Bank experienced a decline in net income in 2006 when compared to 2005, 
primarily due to a decline in noninterest income and an increase in salaries and employee benefits expense, which 
was partially offset by an increase in net interest income and a reduced level of provision for loan losses.  A large 
deposit received through the Section 1031 Deposit program in August 2005 contributed to an increase in net 
income for 2005.  See “Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin”, “Noninterest Income” and “Noninterest 
Expenses” below. 

On August 16, 2006, the Bank completed an underwritten public offering of 1,432,700 shares of common stock.  
These shares increased the diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the year ending December 31, 2006 
over 2005 by 21%. The $0.24 decline in diluted earnings per share for 2006 as compared to 2005  was comprised 
of a $0.10 decline attributable to the decline in net income and $0.14 decline attributable to the increase in diluted 
weighted average shares outstanding.

Net income for 2005 increased by $463,000, or 17%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004, which 
had net income of $2,668,000, or $0.79 per diluted share and a return on average assets of 1.14%. The increase in 
net income was attributable to increased noninterest income and net interest income, partially offset by increased 
noninterest expenses.

Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2006, net interest income was $11,031,000 and the net interest margin was 
3.87%. This was an increase of $645,000 or 6% over 2005. At December 31, 2005, net interest income was 
$10,386,000 and the net interest margin was 3.76%. At December 31, 2006, approximately 81% of the Bank’s 
assets were comprised of net loans, and 10% of U.S. Government Securities and corporate bonds compared 
to 68% of net loans, 7% of U.S. Government Securities and corporate bonds and 18% in Federal Funds sold 
at December 31, 2005. The amount of Federal Funds sold at the end of 2005 was high due to Section 1031 
Deposit program deposits of $85,505,000 that were withdrawn in the first quarter of 2006. This deposit program 
contributed to net interest income for 2005, even though it had a negative impact on that year’s net interest 
margin.

Net interest income was $8,968,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and the net interest margin was 
4.16%. Although the net interest margin declined in 2005 from the previous year, net interest income increased by 
$1,418,000 in 2005 as compared to 2004. The increase is primarily due to a 28% increase in average earning assets 
to $275,919,000 in 2005 from $215,435,000 in 2004

The yield on interest earning assets continued to increase from 2004 to 2006. The yield on interest earning assets 
was 7.18% for the year ended December 31, 2006, 6.04% for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 5.78% for 
the year ended December 31, 2004. The increasing yields were attributable to the general increase in interest rates 
and the repricing of floating rate loans.

The impact of rising rates experienced during 2006 and 2005 was offset by the growth in earning assets. 
As interest rates leveled off in the second half of 2006, the Bank’s cost of funds continued to climb due to 
competition for deposits and repricing of maturing deposits.  The Bank anticipates that the cost of funds will rise 
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in 2007 as time deposits and other borrowings mature and competition for funds in the market place dictates 
interest rates needed for retention and attraction of deposits. 

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the cost of interest bearing liabilities was 3.73% compared with a cost 
of interest bearing liabilities of 2.49% for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 1.76% for the year ended 
December 31, 2004. The increase in the cost of funds has been driven by the rising market interest rates during 
2004 through 2006, and an increase in time deposits as a component of total deposits.

The following tables present condensed average balance sheet information for the Bank, together with interest rates 
earned and paid on the various sources and uses of its funds for each of the periods presented. Average balances are 
based on daily average balances. Nonaccrual loans are included in loans with any interest collected reflected on a 
cash basis.

Average Balance Sheets and Analysis of Net Interest Income

The net amortization of deferred fees and costs on loans included in interest income was $172,000, $138,000 
and $119,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

Net interest margin is computed by dividing net interest income by average total earning assets. 

Net interest spread is the difference between the average rate earned on average total earning assets and the 
average rate paid on average total interest bearing liabilities. 

The following table shows the change in interest income and interest expense and the amount of change 
attributable to variances in volume and rates. The unallocated change in rate or volume variance has been allocated 
between the rate and volume variances in proportion to the absolute dollar amount in the change of each.

1)

2)

3)

Average
Balance

Interest
Income/
Expense

Average
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Income/
Expense

Average
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Income/
Expense

Average
Rate

Interest bearing deposits in banks 832$            28$             3.37% 2,992$         118$           3.94% 4,800$         170$            3.54%
Taxable investment securities 28,856         1,622          5.62% 19,772         964             4.88% 12,935         542              4.19%
Federal funds sold 6,679           297             4.45% 31,144         1,131          3.63% 8,648           96                1.11%
Loans, net of unearned income (1) 248,539       18,507        7.45% 222,011       14,455        6.51% 189,052       11,642         6.16%

284,906       20,454        7.18% 275,919       16,668        6.04% 215,435       12,450         5.78%
22,599         22,128         21,920         
(3,705)         (3,432)          (3,014)         

303,800$     294,615$     234,341$     

Deposits:
    Interest bearing transaction accounts 13,438$       60               0.45% 13,921$       64               0.46% 15,469$       73                0.47%
    Savings and money market 80,669         2,298          2.85% 125,606       2,764          2.20% 82,982         1,105           1.33%
    Time deposits 129,636       5,682          4.38% 88,460         2,656          3.00% 72,218         1,572           2.18%
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 578              13               2.25% 563              13               2.31% 523              11                2.10%
FHLB advances 28,557         1,370          4.80% 23,747         785             3.31% 26,644         721              2.71%

252,878       9,423          3.73% 252,297       6,282          2.49% 197,836       3,482           1.76%
11,810         14,342         10,834         

2,344           1,580           1,167           
    Total liabilities 267,032       268,219       209,837       

36,768         26,396         24,504         
$303,800 294,615$     234,341$     

11,031$      3.87% 10,386$      3.76% 8,968$         4.16%
3.45% 3.55% 4.02%

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 

20042006 2005

Assets
Interest earning assets:

Total earning assets/interest income
Nonearning assets
Allowance for loan losses
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders'  Equity
Interest bearing liabilities:

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Net interest income and margin (2)
Net interest spread (3)

Total interest bearing liabilities/interest expense
Noninterest bearing deposits
Other liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Volume and Yield/Rate Variances

(in thousands) Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

Interest bearing deposits in banks (75)$       (15)$       (90)$       (70)$      18$      (52)$

Taxable investment securities 494        164         658         322        100      422

Federal funds sold (1,044)    210         (834)       553        482      1,035

Loans, net 1,840     2,212      4,052      2,117     696      2,813

Total interest income 1,215     2,571      3,786      2,922     1,296   4,218

Interest bearing transaction accounts (2)           (2)           (4)           (7)          (2)         (9)

Savings and money market (1,149)    683         (466)       731        928      1,659

Time deposits 1,522     1,504      3,026      403        681      1,084

Securities sold under repurchase agreements -             -             -             1            1          2

FHLB advances 181        404         585         (84)        148      64

Total interest expense 552        2,589      3,141      1,044     1,756   2,800

Increase (decrease) in net interest income 663$      (18)$       645$       1,878$   (460)$   1,418$

Change Due to

2006 Compared to 2005

Change Due to

2005 Compared to 2004

Provision for Loan Losses

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses for losses that are expected to occur as an incidental part of 
the banking business. Write-offs of loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses, which is adjusted 
periodically to reflect changes in the volume of outstanding loans and estimated losses due to a deterioration in 
the financial condition of borrowers or the value of property securing nonperforming loans, or changes in general 
economic conditions and other qualitative factors. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are made through a 
charge against income referred to as the “provision for loan losses.”

The Bank’s loan policy provides procedures designed to evaluate and assess the credit risk factors associated with 
its loan portfolio, to enable management to assess such credit risk factors prior to granting new loans and to 
evaluate the sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses. The Bank conducts an assessment of the allowance for 
loan losses on a monthly basis and undertakes a more critical evaluation quarterly. At the time of the quarterly 
review, the Board of Directors examines and formally approves the adequacy of the allowance. The quarterly 
evaluation includes an assessment of the following factors: any external loan review and regulatory examination, 
estimated potential loss exposure on each pool of loans, concentrations of credit, value of collateral, the level 
of delinquent and non-accruals loans, trends in loan volume, effects of any changes in the lending policies and 
procedures, changes in lending personnel, current economic conditions at the local, state and national level, and a 
migration analysis of historical losses and recoveries for the prior eight quarters.

At December 31, 2006, the Bank’s allowance for loan losses totaled $3,736,000, or 1.45% of outstanding loans, 
compared with an allowance for loan losses of $3,617,000, or 1.51% of outstanding loans, at December 31, 2005 
and $3,173,000, or 1.56% of outstanding loans, at December 31, 2004. There were $134,000 in loans charged-
off to the allowance for loan losses during 2006 and $102,000 was charged-off in 2004. No loans were charged-
off to the allowance in 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the provision for loan losses amounted to 
$253,000, and for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the provision for loan losses amounted 
to $444,000.  The provision for loan losses is dependent on the increase in loans outstanding, the mix of types 
of loans within the portfolio, net of charge-offs recorded against the allowance and the volumes of loans past due 
or on nonaccrual status. The decline in the provision for loan losses for 2006 was a reflection of our evaluation of 
the historical asset quality levels experienced by the Bank since it started as a commercial bank in 1999 and the 
estimated amount of allowance needed to address the credit risk inherent in our loan portfolio. 
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Noninterest Income

Noninterest income is comprised primarily of service charges and other fees on deposit accounts, gains on sales 
of SBA guaranteed loans and office lease income. Additionally, the Bank receives fees through the Section 1031 
Deposit program, loan servicing fees and other fees.

The following table summarizes noninterest income recorded for the years indicated

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Service charges  $337  $590  $387 

Office leases  658  558  303 

Gains on sales of loans  99  446  329 

Real estate exchange fees  42  109  111 

Loan servicing  65  71  55 

Other income  120  85  153 

Total $1,321 $1,859 $1,338

Noninterest income was $1,321,000, $1,859,000 and $1,338,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. Rising interest rates have had a negative impact on the Bank’s noninterest income as the 
volume of SBA guaranteed loans and the number of real estate exchanges handled are partly dependent on the 
level of general economic interest rates.

Service charges on deposit accounts were $337,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $590,000 
and $387,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in service charges 
experienced in 2005 was the result of draft processing income received during the first six months of 2005. Draft 
processing services were discontinued in June 2005 due to the high volume of return items and associated expenses 
with the service.

The Bank built and owns its headquarters building with approximately half of the office space leased to 
nonaffiliated tenants. The building was occupied in 2004 and fully leased in 2005. Lease income from this 
office building was $658,000, $558,000 and $303,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. The original cost of the land and building was $8,637,000 and the book value as of December 31, 
2006, net of accumulated depreciation was $7,429,000. 

The Bank originates loans guaranteed by the SBA. The guaranteed portion of these loans are sold and the Bank 
records a gain on premiums obtained, less adjustments for future loan servicing income and yield adjustments 
on the retained nonguaranteed portion of the loans. These gains amounted to $99,000, $446,000 and $329,000 
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The amount of gains recognized during 
a period is dependent on the volume of loans generated, as well as, the term and rate of the loans. The Bank 
employs business development officers who concentrate on the generation of SBA guaranteed loans and whose 
compensation is primarily tied to commissions on loans generated. 

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, service charges from the Section 1031 
Deposits program were $42,000, $109,000 and $111,000. It is not anticipated that the volume of real estate 
exchanges handled by the Bank will increase in the coming year.

Noninterest Expenses

The following table summarizes noninterest expenses recorded for the years indicated.

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Salaries and employee benefits  $3,675  $3,055  $2,627 

Occupancy and equipment  1,350  1,214  1,065 

Other expenses  2,213  2,212  1,636 

Total $7,238 $6,481 $5,328

For the year ended December 31, 2006, noninterest expenses were $7,238,000, or 2% of average total assets and 
59% of total revenue (total revenue is defined as net interest income plus noninterest income). This was a 12% 
increase over 2005 noninterest expenses of $6,481,000. Noninterest expenses increased 22% in 2005 compared 
to noninterest expenses of $5,328,000 in 2004. Noninterest expenses were 2% of average assets and 53% of total 
revenue in 2005 and 2% of average assets and 52% of total revenue in 2004.

Salaries and employee benefits expense increased 20% in 2006 compared to 2005. The increased personnel 
expense during 2006 was primarily attributable to the addition of a branch administrator, a marketing officer, a 
compliance officer and the separation of duties between a Chief Executive Officer and a Chief Operating Officer. 
These positions were created in anticipation of growth and implementation of cash management products. 
Personnel expense increased 16% between 2005 and 2004, while average assets increased 26% during the same 
period.

Occupancy and equipment expenses increased 11% in 2006 compared to 2005, which had increased 14% over 
2004. The increase in occupancy expenses over the three years was primarily attributable to the occupancy of 
additional space in the Bank owned main office building in April 2005, and the related depreciation expense of 
buildings, furniture and improvements.

There was relatively no change in other operating expenses in 2006 and 2005. Other operating expenses had 
increased $576,000 or 35% between 2005 and 2004.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Bank accrues income tax based on the anticipated tax rates during the financial period covered. The provision 
for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, was $2,053,000, $2,189,000 and 
$1,866,000, respectively. The combined effective Federal and State corporate income tax rates for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were 42.2%, 41.1% and 41.1%, respectively.

Investment Portfolio

Securities classified as available-for-sale for accounting purposes are recorded at their fair or market value on the 
balance sheet. Securities classified as held-to-maturity are recorded at amortized cost. At December 31, 2006, 
investment securities comprised 10% of total assets and 11% of interest earning assets. At December 31, 2005, 
investment securities comprised 7% of total assets and 7% of interest earning assets. At December 31, 2006 
and 2005, there were securities classified as held-to-maturity of $5,000,000, with market values of $4,868,000 
at December 31, 2006 and $4,840,000 at December 31, 2005. Securities classified as available-for-sale were 
$25,829,000 and $19,547,000 for the 2006 and 2005 respective year ends. Changes in the fair market value of 
available-for-sale securities (e.g., unrealized holding gains or losses) are reported as “other comprehensive income 

16 1�16 1�



(loss),” net of tax, and carried as accumulated other comprehensive income or loss within shareholders’ equity until 
realized.
The Bank utilizes the investment portfolio to manage liquidity and attract funding that requires collateralization. 
At December 31, 2006, investment securities with a market value of $17,679,000, or 58% of the portfolio, were 
pledged to secure State of California deposits and securities sold under repurchase agreements. At December 31, 
2006, securities with a par value of $23,250,000 were callable within one year.

Investment Securities December 31,

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Available-for-sale securities:

    Government agencies  $22,192  $18,831  $8,241 

    Mortgage-backed securities  2,869  -  - 

    Other debt securities  763  711  - 

    FNMA stock  5  5  7 

 25,829  19,547  8,248 

Held-to-maturity:

    Government agencies  5,000  5,000  5,000 

Total  $30,829  $24,547  $13,248 

The composition of the investment portfolio by major category and contracted maturities or repricing of debt 
investment securities at December 31, 2006 are shown below.
Contractual Maturity or Repricing Schedule and Weighted Average Yields of Securities
As of December 31, 2006

Within One Year
After One But Within 

Five Years
After Five But 

Within Ten Years After Ten Years

(in thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Available-for-sale:

Government agencies  $743 3.23%  $4,187 4.40%  $2,492 6.00%  $14,770 5.96%

Mortgage-backed securities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  2,869 5.82%

Other debt securities  -  -  -  513 6.98%  -  -  -  250 8.24%

 743 3.23%  4,700 4.68%  2,492 6.00%  17,889 5.97%

Held-to-maturity:  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Government agencies  -  -  -  5,000 4.27%  -  -  -  -  - 

 $743 3.23%  $9,700 4.47%  $2,492 6.00%  $17,889 5.97%

As of December 31, 2006 the Bank did not own securities of any single issuer (other than U.S. Government 
agencies and corporations) whose aggregate book value was in excess of 10% of the Bank’s total equity at the time 
of purchase. 

Loan Portfolio

The following table shows the composition of the Bank’s loan portfolio by amount and percentage of total loans 
for each major loan category at the dates indicated.

Loans

December 31, 

(in thousands)  2006 % 2005 % 2004 % 2003 % 2002 % 

Commercial & Agricultural  $55,814 21.7%  $41,064 17.1%  $39,584 19.5%  $35,350 19.2%  $24,099 14.2%

Real Estate - Commercial  91,557 35.6%  92,198 38.4%  70,954 34.8%  63,516 34.6%  52,682 31.0%

Real Estate-Construction  30,937 12.0%  23,875 9.9%  20,567 10.1%  14,913 8.1%  13,442 7.9%

Real Estate - 1-4 Family  31,451 12.2%  30,763 12.8%  35,072 17.2%  33,530 18.2%  43,575 25.7%

Real Estate-Multifamily & 
Land  35,880 14.0%  43,465 18.1%  30,791 15.1%  32,013 17.4%  33,092 19.5%

Installment Loans to  
Individuals  4,977 1.9%  4,181 1.7%  4,273 2.1%  3,263 1.8%  2,399 1.4%

Lease Financing  6,538 2.6%  4,756 2.0%  2,471 1.2%  1,239 0.7%  512 0.3%

 257,154 100%  240,302 100%  203,712 100%  183,824 100%  169,801 100%

LESS:

Allowance for Loan Losses  (3,736)  (3,617)  (3,173)  (2,831)  (2,471)

Deferred Loan Fees  (559)  (477)  (355)  (355)  (344)

Total Loans, Net  $252,860  $236,208  $200,184  $180,638  $166,986 

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had approximately $30,365,000 in undisbursed loan commitments, of 
which approximately $14,305,000 related to real estate construction loans. This compares with undisbursed 
commitments of approximately $33,383,000 at December 31, 2005, of which approximately $19,531,000 
related to real estate construction loans. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were $2,019,000 and $431,000, 
respectively, in standby letters of credit outstanding.

The following table shows the maturity distribution of the loan portfolio, including rate repricing intervals on 
variable rate loans, at December 31, 2006. In the following table, the term variable (generally referring to loans for 
which the interest rate will change immediately given a change in the underlying index) also includes loans with 
adjustable rates (loans for which the rate may change, but which are also limited in occurrence).
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Loan Portfolio Maturity Structure at December �1, �006

(in thousands)
Within One 

Year

After One  
But Within  
Five Years

After Five 
Years Total

Real Estate - Construction 
(1)  $20,322  $1,010  $9,605  $30,937 

Commercial & Agricultural  21,430  29,705  4,679  55,814 

Total  $41,752  $30,715  $14,284  $86,751 

Loans with:

Fixed Interest Rates  $27,949  $24,628  $11,497  $64,074 

Floating Interest Rates  13,803  6,087  2,787  22,677 

Total  $41,752  $30,715  $14,284  $86,751 

Construction loans with maturities over five years include loans that borrowers have paid fees for a rollover to 
permanent financing. 

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and other real estate owned. Nonperforming loans are those 
for which the borrower fails to perform under the original terms of the obligation and consist of nonaccrual loans, 
accruing loans 90 days or more past due and restructured loans.

In addition to the nonperforming loans discussed below for the respective periods, the Bank owns a General 
Motors Acceptance Corporation bond which matures September 2011 and has a coupon of 6.875%. The par 
value is $500,000 and was carried on the Bank’s financial statements at its market value of $513,000 compared to 
an amortized cost of $498,000 as of December 31, 2006. General Motors Acceptance Corporation’s bonds were 
downgraded below investment grade in 2005. Management believes that there is no potential of loss in this bond 
at this time. The Board of Directors’ Internal Asset Review Committee also monitors the bond’s rating. 

Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans

December 31, 

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Nonaccrual loans  $2,383  $713  $216  $404  $569 

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more  -  -  -  -  - 

Total nonperforming loans  2,383  713  216  404  569 

Other real estate owned  -  -  -  -  - 

Total nonperforming assets  $2,383  $713  $216  $404  $569 

Nonperforming loans to total loans 0.93% 0.30% 0.11% 0.22% 0.34%

Nonperforming assets to total assets 0.76% 0.21% 0.09% 0.17% 0.26%

1)

Nonaccrual loans were $2,383,000, or 0.9% of gross loans outstanding, at December 31, 2006. Nonaccrual 
loans consisted of five loans of which the Small Business Administration (SBA) guarantees back $435,000 of the 
balances. Additionally, one loan, comprising 62% of the nonaccrual loan balances, was placed on nonaccrual 
status in the fourth quarter and is collateralized by a mortgage on commercial real estate property. At December 
31, 2006, there were no loans with respect to which management had concerns as to the ability of the borrower to 
comply with the present loan repayment terms that were not included in nonaccrual loans.

While the number of nonperforming loans has remained consistent over the past three years, the balance has 
fluctuated due to the size of a given credit at any point in time. Nonaccrual loans were $713,000, or 0.3% of gross 
loans outstanding at December 31, 2005 and $216,000, or 0.1% of gross loans at December 31, 2004. There were 
$134,000 in loans charged-off to the allowance for loan losses in 2006, no losses in 2005 and $102,000 of  loan 
losses in 2004.

Loan Policies and Procedures

The Bank’s underwriting practices include an analysis of the borrower’s management, current economic factors, 
the borrower’s ability to respond and adapt to economic changes outside its direct control and verification of 
primary and secondary sources of repayment. Risk within the loan portfolio is managed through the Bank’s loan 
policies and underwriting. These policies are reviewed and approved annually by the Board of Directors.

Management administers the loan policy, ensures proper loan documentation is maintained and develops the 
methodology for monitoring loan quality and the level of the allowance for loan losses and reports on these 
matters to the Board of Directors’ Internal Asset Review Committee and the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors’ Internal Asset Review Committee meets regularly to evaluate problem assets and the 
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The Committee also reviews and makes recommendations to the 
Board of Directors regarding the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, and is responsible for ensuring 
that an independent third party reviews the loan portfolio at least annually. Resultant reports are sent to this 
Committee and to the Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors’ Loan Committee is responsible for enforcement of loan policy and has additional 
responsibilities which include approving loans or loan relationships for a customer that, when considered in the 
aggregate, exceed management’s level of loan authority for that customer.

The Board of Directors’ Audit Committee also engages a third party to perform a review of management’s 
asset and liability practices to ensure compliance with the Bank’s policies.

The Board of Directors retains overall responsibility for all loan functions and reviews material loan 
relationships.

Loan approvals are granted according to established policies, and lending officers are assigned approval authorities 
within their levels of training and experience. Interest rates reflect the risk inherent in loans and collateral is 
generally taken for purchase-money financing. Collateral may consist of accounts receivable, direct assignment of 
contracts, inventory, equipment and real estate. Unsecured loans may be made when warranted by the financial 
strength of the borrower. With the exception of single-family, residential mortgage loans, the maximum rate 
adjusting period is generally five years. Most of the Bank’s loans bear interest at variable rates or include periodic 
repricing features. Guarantees are generally required to help assure repayment. Management believes that pricing 
is commensurate with risk for both new and existing customers.

•

•

•

•

•
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The Bank maintains the allowance for loan losses to provide for inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Additions to 
the allowance for loan losses are established through a provision charged to expense. All loans which are judged 
to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance while any recoveries are credited to the allowance. The 
Bank’s policy is to charge off any known losses at the time of determination. Any unsecured loan more than 90 
days delinquent in payment of principal or interest and not in the process of collection is charged off in total. 
Secured loans are evaluated on a case by case basis to determine the ultimate loss potential to us subsequent to the 
liquidation of collateral. In those cases where we believe we are inadequately protected, a charge-off will be made 
to reduce the loan balance to a level equal to the liquidation value of the collateral.

The Bank’s loan policy provides procedures designed to evaluate and assess the credit risk factors associated 
with the loan portfolio, to enable the Bank to assess such credit risk factors prior to granting new loans and to 
evaluate the sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses. The Bank conducts an assessment of the allowance on a 
monthly basis and undertakes a more critical evaluation quarterly. At the time of the quarterly review, the Board 
of Directors will examine and formally approve the adequacy of the allowance. The quarterly evaluation includes 
an assessment of the following factors: any external loan review and any recent regulatory examination, estimated 
potential loss exposure on each pool of loans, concentrations of credit, value of collateral, the level of delinquent 
and non-accrual loans, trends in loan volume, effects of any changes in lending policies and procedures, changes 
in lending personnel, current economic conditions at the local, state and national level and historical losses and 
recoveries.

The following table sets forth an analysis of the allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses for the 
periods indicated.

Summary of Activity in the Allowance for Loan Losses
Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of period  $3,617  $3,173  $2,831  $2,471  $2,111 

Charge-offs:

Commerical and agricultural  134  -  102  30  - 

Real estate--construction and land development  -  -  -  - 

Real estate--mortgage  -  -  -  - 

Installment loans to individuals  -  -  -  - 

Total loans charged-off  134  0  102  30  0 

Recoveries:

Commerical and agricultural  -  -  -  30  - 

Real estate--construction and land development  -  -  -  -  - 

Real estate--mortgage  -  -  -  -  - 

Installment loans to individuals  -  -  -  -  - 

Total recoveries  0  0  0  30  0 

Net loans charged-off  134  0  102  0  0 

Provisions for loan losses  253  444  444  360  360 

Allowance for loan losses - end of period  $3,736  $3,617  $3,173  $2,831  $2,471 

Loans:

Average loans outstanding duing period, net 

       of unearned income  $248,539  $222,011  $189,052  $190,840  $174,431 

Total loans at end of period, net of unearned income  $256,596  $239,825  $203,357  $183,469  $169,457 

Ratios:

Net loans charged-off to average net loans 0.05%  0 0.05%  0  0 

Net loans charged-off to total loans 0.05%  0 0.05%  0  0 

Allowance for loan losses to avg. net loans 1.50% 1.63% 1.68% 1.48% 1.42%

Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.46% 1.51% 1.56% 1.54% 1.46%

Net loans charged-off to beginning allowance for loan 3.70%  0 3.60%  0  0 

Net loans charged-off to provision for loan losses 52.96%  0 22.97%  0  0 
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the amount of 
loans in each category as a percentage of total loans in each category. The allocated and unallocated portions of the 
allowance for loan losses are available to the entire portfolio.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

The increase in the other allocation from 2003 to 2004 was due to the implementation of various qualitative 
factors in the determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Qualitative factors included the 
size of individual credits, concentrations and general economic conditions. Management also considers these 
qualitative factors in their evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. An unallocated allowance 
can arise from fluctuations in the amount of classified and nonperforming loans (“credit grades”) between periods. 
The Internal Asset Review Committee reviews the amount and reasons for unallocated allowances and whether 
it has arisen due to periodic fluctuations in the credit grades or has arisen due to changes in qualitative factors or 
change in lending strategies. If the unallocated allowance has arisen from other than periodic fluctuations in credit 
grades, then the Internal Asset Review Committee may determine that a portion of the allowance for loan losses 
should be reversed.

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Bank maintains an allowance for losses for undisbursed loan 
commitments, which is reported in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.  This allowance was 
$50,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Deposits

Deposits are the Bank’s primary source of funds. The Bank employs business development officers to solicit 
commercial demand deposits and instituted a formalized direct mail retail demand account solicitation program 
during the second half of 2006. This program is designed to increase the amount of demand deposits which have a 
lower cost of funds than other types of deposits. The Bank focuses on obtaining deposits from the communities it 
serves but occasionally may accept deposits from outside its market area or receive brokered deposits.

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had a deposit mix of 61% in time deposits, 29% in money market and 
savings accounts, 5% in interest bearing demand accounts, and 5% in noninterest bearing demand accounts. At 
December 31, 2005, the Bank’s deposit mix was comprised of 36% in time deposits, 55% in money market and 
savings accounts, 5% in interest bearing demand accounts, and 4% in noninterest bearing demand accounts.

As part of our deposit product line, we provide a service to facilitate real estate property exchanges, known as “like 
kind exchanges” that qualify under Internal Revenue Code Section 1031 (“Section 1031 Deposits”). Through this 
program, deposits of monies from properties sold are received and held until a new property purchase is funded. 
The deposits are held for up to 180 days in savings accounts and a fee is assessed for the service. At December 
31, 2006, there was $6,173,000 on deposit in the Section 1031 Deposit program. At December 31, 2005, these 
deposits totaled $93,914,000 of which $85,505,000 was attributable to three accounts. Section 1031 Deposits 
are used to fund general lending and investing activities instead of utilizing FHLB borrowings or emphasizing 
certificate of deposit campaigns. 

The Bank offers local depositors with deposits in excess of $100,000 and who are concerned with FDIC insurance 
limits, a deposit placement service through a program called CDARS. Through this program amounts in excess 
of $100,000 can be placed in certificates of deposit at other institutions and the Bank receives reciprocal deposits 
from other institutions within the network.  At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there were $8,170,000 and 
$504,000 in the CDARS program, respectively. Although the originating depositors are local customers of the 
Bank, this exchange of deposits for the purposes of FFIEC Call Reports, are classified as brokered deposits.

Time deposits are received through a program run by the Treasurer of the State of California to place public 
deposits with community banks. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the State of California had $20,000,000 and 
$16,000,000 in time deposits with the Bank with maturities of 3 to 6 months and collateralized by investment 
securities or letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank. 

The following table sets forth the average balances by deposit category and the interest cost for the periods 
indicated.

Average Deposit Balances and Rates Paid

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)
Average 
Balance

Average 
Rate

Average 
Balance

Average 
Rate

Average 
Balance

Average 
Rate

Non-Interest-bearing demand deposits  $11,810  $14,342  $10,834 

Interest-bearing demand deposits  13,438 0.45%  13,921 0.46%  15,469 0.47%

Saving and money market (1)  80,669 2.85%  125,606 2.20%  82,982 1.33%

Time certificates under $100,000  55,504 3.91%  43,883 2.85%  44,049 2.09%

Time certificates $100,000 or over  74,132 4.74%  44,577 3.15%  28,169 2.35%

Total deposits  $235,553 3.41%  $242,329 2.27%  $181,503 1.52%

This includes the Bank’s 1031 Deposits which are volatile and generally do not remain on deposit for more 
than 180 days. 

1)

Year Ended December 31, 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)
 Allowance 
Allocation

Amount of 
Category 

Loans 
to Total 
Loans 

Allowance 
Allocation

Amount of 
Category 

Loans 
to Total 
Loans 

Allowance 
Allocation

Amount of 
Category 

Loans 
to Total 
Loans 

Allowance 
Allocation

Amount of 
Category 

Loans 
to Total 
Loans 

Allowance 
Allocation

Amount of 
Category 

Loans 
to Total 
Loans 

Commercial  $521 21.7%  $1,013 17.1%  $986 19.5%  $1,394 19.2%  $1,169 14.2%

Commercial real estate  688 35.6%  680 38.4%  617 34.8%  480 34.6%  408 31.0%

Real estate - construction  450 12.0%  227 9.9%  416 10.1%  374 8.1%  221 7.9%

Real estate - mortgage  58 12.2%  59 12.8%  64 17.2%  54 18.2%  185 25.7%

Real Estate - multifamily  
& Land

 271 14.0%  303 18.1%  117 15.1%  140 17.4%  132 19.5%

Consumer  36 1.9%  29 1.7%  20 2.1%  13 1.8%  33 1.4%

Lease financing  69 2.6%  47 2.0%  29 1.2%  14 0.7%  5 0.3%

Other  1,117  934  828  123  19 

Unallocated  526  325  96  239  299 

  Total  $3,736 100.0%  $3,617 100.0%  $3,173 100.0%  $2,831 100.0%  $2,471 100.0%
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The following table sets forth the maturities of time certificates of deposit outstanding at December 31, 2006. 

Maturity of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More

(in thousands) December 31, 2006

Time deposits of 100,000 or more maturing in:

Three months or less  $39,701 

Over three though six months  19,098 

Over six to twelve months  11,351 

Over twelve months  10,010 

Total time deposits of $100,000 or more  $80,160 

Borrowings

Borrowings were $31,717,000 and $15,375,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Borrowings consisted of FHLB 
advances and securities sold under repurchase agreements. Borrowings increased through a $16,260,000 net 
increase in FHLB advances an $82,000 increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements. The increase in 
FHLB advances was primarily to support loan funding given the reduction in Section 1031 Deposits during 2006.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Bank constantly monitors earning asset and deposit levels, developments and trends in interest rates, liquidity, 
capital adequacy and marketplace opportunities. Management responds to all of these to protect and possibly 
enhance net interest income while managing risks within acceptable levels as set forth in the Bank’s policies. In 
addition, alternative business plans and transactions are contemplated for their potential impact. This process is 
known as asset/liability management and is carried out by changing the maturities and relative proportions of the 
various types of loans, investments, deposits and borrowings in the ways described above.

The tool most commonly used to manage and analyze the interest rate sensitivity of a bank is known as a 
computer simulation model. To quantify the extent of risks in both the Bank’s current position and in transactions 
it might make in the future, the Bank uses a model to simulate the impact of different interest rate scenarios on 
net interest income. The hypothetical impact of both sudden (generally, an immediate change in interest rates of 
+/- 2.00%) and smaller incremental interest rate changes are modeled at least quarterly, representing the primary 
means the Bank uses for interest rate risk management decisions.

At December 31, 2006, given a -2.00%/+ 2.00% shock in interest rates, the model results in the Bank’s net 
interest income for the next twelve months changing by +$322,000 (+3.1%) and -$533,000 (-5.1%) respectively. 
The projected net interest income increase for rate environments is the result of being liability sensitive in a rising 
rate environment (more liabilities potentially repricing than assets) which would offset the significant callable 
investments that would reprice and would accelerate the repricing of assets in a declining rate environment.  In a 
rising rate environment, more liabilities (time deposits and FHLB advances) would reprice then assets resulting 
in the projected decline in retirement income.  The actual experience compared to the model’s projection is 
highly dependent on various factors including the growth and mix in new deposits and borrowings, the extension 
or contraction of maturities of new and renewed liabilities, redeployment of maturing assets, and the general 
influence on pricing by competition in the market place for loans and deposits.

When preparing its modeling, the Bank makes significant assumptions about the lag in the rate of change in 
various asset and liability categories. The Bank bases its assumptions on past experience and comparisons with 
other banks, and tests the validity of its assumptions by reviewing actual results with projected expectations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Maintenance of adequate liquidity requires that sufficient resources be available at all times to meet cash 
flow requirements of the Bank. Liquidity in a banking institution is required primarily to provide for deposit 
withdrawals and the credit needs of customers and to take advantage of lending and investment opportunities as 
they arise. A bank may achieve desired liquidity from both assets and liabilities. Cash and deposits held in other 
banks, Federal funds sold, other short term investments, maturing loans and investments, payments of principal 
and interest on loans and investments, and potential loan sales are sources of asset liquidity. Deposit growth and 
access to credit lines established with correspondent banks, primarily with the FHLB, and access to brokered 
certificates of deposits are sources of liability liquidity. The Bank reviews its liquidity position on a regular basis 
based upon its current position and expected trends of loans and deposits. Management believes that the Bank 
maintains adequate sources of liquidity to meet its liquidity needs.

The Bank’s liquid assets, defined as cash, demand deposits with banks and unpledged investment securities, totaled 
$23,756,000 and $87,170,000 at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, and constituted 8% 
and 25%, respectively, of total assets on those dates. At December 31, 2005, the Bank maintained higher than 
normal Federal funds sold, with a total of $63,370,000, in anticipation of the withdrawal of a large portion of the 
Section 1031 Deposit program deposits, which occurred in 2006.

At December 31, 2006, lines of credit with the FHLB and the Bank’s correspondent banks totaled $110 million, 
of which $38 million was outstanding, which included $7 million in letters of credit issued by the FHLB as 
collateral for State of California deposit. At December 31, 2005, lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank 
and the Bank’s correspondent banks totaled $109 million, of which $33 million was outstanding, which included 
$18 million in letters of credit issued by the FHLB as collateral for State of California deposits.

The Board of Directors recognizes that a strong capital position is vital to growth, continued profitability, and 
depositor and investor confidence. The policy of the Board of Directors is to maintain sufficient capital at not less 
than the “well-capitalized” thresholds established by banking regulators. 

On July 13, 2006, the Bank had an initial public offering of 1,400,000 shares of common stock with an additional 
option of 210,000 shares granted the underwriters to cover over-allotments, of which 32,700 were exercised. This 
offering increased Shareholders’ equity by $19,303,000, net of underwriters’ discount and other expenses. 

Prior to 2006, the Bank’s primary source of capital had been the retention of earnings, net of shareholder dividend 
payments. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, capital was supplemented by the retention of net 
income, less dividends of $1,342,000 and $1,921,000, respectively. Dividends paid as a percent of net income was 
52% for the year ended December 31, 2006, 39% for the year ended December 31, 2005, and 38% for the year 
ended December 31, 2004. 

Shareholders’ equity also includes the Bank’s accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes of $(142,000) at 
December 31, 2006, $(266,000) at December 31, 2005 and $(2,000) at December 31, 2004. Other comprehensive 
loss reflects the fair value adjustment, net of tax, of investment securities classified as available-for-sale. This will 
fluctuate based on the amount of securities classified as available-for-sale and changes in market interest rates. 
Rising interest rates will increase the total comprehensive loss component of total capital. Total shareholders’ 
equity was $47,812,000 at December 31, 2006, $27,043,000 at December 31, 2005 and $25,386,000 at 
December 31, 2004.

Federal regulations establish guidelines for calculating “risk-adjusted” capital ratios and minimum ratio 
requirements. Under these regulations, banks are required to maintain a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% and 
Tier 1 risk-based capital (primarily shareholders’ equity) of at least 4.0% of risk-weighted assets. The Bank had 
total and Tier 1 risk-based capital ratios of 18.0% and 16.8%, respectively, at December 31, 2006, and was “well-
capitalized” under the regulatory guidelines. The Bank’s total and Tier 1 risk-based capital ratios were 10.2% and 
8.9%, respectively, at December 31, 2005.
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In addition, regulators have adopted a minimum leverage ratio standard for Tier 1 capital to average assets. The 
minimum ratio for top-rated institutions may be as low as 3%. However, regulatory agencies have stated that most 
institutions should maintain ratios at least 1 to 2 percentage points above the 3% minimum. As of December 31, 
2006, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 14.3%, while as of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 6.7%. 
Capital levels for the Bank remain above established regulatory capital requirements. 
Impact of Inflation
The primary impact of inflation on the Bank is its effect on interest rates. The Bank’s primary source of income 
is net interest income, which is affected by changes in interest rates. The Bank attempts to limit the impact of 
inflation on its net interest margin through management of rate-sensitive assets and liabilities and analyses of 
interest rate sensitivity. The effect of inflation on premises and equipment as well as on noninterest expenses has 
not been significant for the periods presented.

Common Stock Market of Summit State Bank
The Bank had its underwritten initial public offering on July 13, 2006 with an offering price of $15.00. The 
common stock started trading on the NASDAQ on July 14, 2006, under the symbol “SSBI.” Prior to July 14, 
2006, the common stock had no established public trading market. The quotations shown below reflect for the 
periods indicated the high and low closing sales prices for our common stock as reported by NASDAQ. 

For the quarter ended High Low
Cash dividends  

declared

December 31, 2006 $13.49 $12.76 $0.09

July 14 to September 30, 2006 15.20 12.85 0.09

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on the Bank’s common stock from the start of trading 
on July 14, 2006 to December 31, 2006, with the Standard & Poor’s Smallcap 600 Index and the Nasdaq OTC 
Banking Index during the same period. The graph shows the value of $100 invested in the Bank common stock 
and each of the foregoing indices on July 14, 2006, and assumes the reinvestment of all dividends. The graph 
depicts the change in the value of the Bank’s common stock relative to the indices as of the end of each fiscal year 
and not for any interim period. Historical stock performance is not necessarily indicative of future stock price 
performance.

 

Total Return Performance

80.00

90.00

100.00
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120.00

7/14/06 12/31/06

Index Value

Summit State Bank

Nasdaq OTC Index - Banking

S&P Smallcap 600 Index

     Period Ending
Index     �/1�/06 1�/�1/06 
Summit State Bank   100.00  86.20 
Nasdaq OTC Index - Banking  100.00  110.14 
S&P Smallcap 600 Index  100.00  112.51
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2006 2005

10,606$     2,186$        
-                 63,370        

Total cash and cash equivalents 10,606       65,556        

457            1,635          

$26,104 and $20,009 at December 31, 2006 and 2005 25,829       19,547        

$4,868 and $4,840 at December 31, 2006 and 2005 5,000         5,000          

and $3,617 at December 31, 2006 and 2005 252,860     236,208      
8,175         8,652          
1,699         1,451          
4,119         4,119          
4,205 3,620          

Total assets 312,950$   345,788$

Demand - non interest-bearing 11,188$     11,291$      
Demand - interest-bearing 12,623       14,247        
Savings 19,331       112,398      
Money market 47,335       53,867        
Time deposits, $100 thousand and over 80,160       59,187        
Other time deposits 62,337       50,764        

Total deposits 232,974     301,754      

257            175             
31,460       15,200        

447            1,616          
Total liabilities 265,138     318,745      

Preferred stock, no par value; 20,000 shares authorized; none issued -                 -                  
Common stock, no par value; shares authorized - 30,000;

shares isssued and outstanding - 4,795 at December 31, 2006 
and 3,361 at December 31, 2005 36,698       17,395        

Retained earnings 11,256       9,914          
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (142)          (266)            

Total shareholders' equity 47,812       27,043        
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 312,950$   345,788$

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Shareholders' equity 

Federal funds sold

Accrued interest receivable and other assets 

Deposits:

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances

Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $3,736

Bank premises and equipment, net 

Goodwill

Time deposits in banks
Available-for-sale investment securities - amortized cost of

Held-to-maturity investment securities - market value of

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ASSETS

December 31,
(In thousands)

Cash and due from banks

Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost

(In thousands except for earnings per share data) 2006 2005 2004

Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans 18,507$   14,455$   11,642$    
Interest on Federal funds sold 297          1,131       96             
Interest on investment securities and deposits in banks 1,536       1,025       656           
Dividends on FHLB stock 114          57            56             

Total interest income 20,454     16,668     12,450      

Interest expense:
Deposits 8,040       5,484       2,750        
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 13            13            11             
FHLB advances 1,370       785          721           

Total interest expense 9,423       6,282       3,482        

Net interest income before 
provision for loan losses 11,031     10,386     8,968        

Provision for loan losses 253          444          444           

Net interest income after 
provision for loan losses 10,778     9,942       8,524        

Non-interest income:
Service charges 337          590          387           
Office leases 658          558          303           
Gains on sales of loans 99            446          329           
Real estate exchange fees 42            109          111           
Loan servicing, net 65            71            55             
Other income 120          85            153           

Total non-interest income 1,321       1,859       1,338        

Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 3,675       3,055       2,627        
Occupancy and equipment 1,350       1,214       1,065        
Other expenses 2,213       2,212       1,636        

Total non-interest expense 7,238       6,481       5,328        

Income before provision for 
income taxes 4,861       5,320       4,534        

Provision for income taxes 2,053       2,189       1,866        

Net income 2,808$     3,131$     2,668$      

Basic earnings per share 0.70$       0.93$       0.79$        

Diluted earnings per share 0.69$       0.93$       0.79$        

Basic weighted average shares of 
common stock outstanding 4,030 3,361 3,361

Diluted weighted average shares of 
common stock outstanding 4,074 3,378 3,361

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
Other Total

Comprehensive Total Compre-
Retained Income (Loss) Shareholders' hensive

(In thousands) Shares Amount Earnings (Net of Taxes) Equity Income

Balance, January 1, 2004 3,361          17,395$          6,333$            54$                 23,782$

Comprehensive income 
Net income 2,668              2,668              2,668$
Other comprehensive loss, net

of tax: 
Net change in unrealized

losses on available-for-sale 
investment securities (56)                  (56)                  (56)

Total comprehensive income 2,612$

Cash dividends - $.30 per share (1,008)             (1,008)

Balance, December 31, 2004 3,361          17,395            7,993              (2)                    25,386

Comprehensive income 
Net income 3,131              3,131              3,131$
Other comprehensive loss, net

of tax: 
Net change in unrealized

losses on available-for-sale 
investment securities (264)                (264)                (264)

Total comprehensive income 2,867$

Cash dividends - $.36 per share (1,210)             (1,210)

Balance, December 31, 2005 3,361          17,395            9,914              (266)                27,043

Comprehensive income:
Net income 2,808              2,808              2,808$
Other comprehensive income, net

of tax: 
Net change in unrealized losses

on available-for-sale invest-
ment securities 124                 124                 124

Total comprehensive income 2,932$

Stock issued 1,434          19,303            19,303

Cash dividends - $.36 per share (1,466)             (1,466)

Balance, December 31, 2006 4,795          36,698$         11,256$         (142)$             47,812$

Common Stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,808$                3,131$                2,668$                 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 711           633           510             
Loss on disposition of bank premises and 

equipment -               13               
Net change in deferred loan fees 81             122           -                 
Provision for loan losses 253           444           444             
Gains on sales of loans (99)            (446)         (329)           
Loans originated for sale (1,201)       (6,013)      (1,816)        
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 1,281        6,498        3,167         
Dividends on Federal Home Loan Bank stock (98)            (62)           (57)             
Net change in accrued interest

receivable and other assets (341)          (500)         192             
Net change in accrued interest

payable and other liabilities (1,169)       1,359        (96)             
Provision for deferred income taxes (287)          (245)         (377)           

Net cash from operating
activities 1,939                  4,921                  4,319                   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in time deposits in banks 1,178        2,599        1,773         
Purchases of available-for-sale investment

securities (15,015)     (17,257)    (4,498)        
Proceeds from calls and maturities of available-for-sale

investment securities 8,920        5,500        5,751         
Purchase of held-to-maturity investment securities -                -               (5,000)        
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock (1,118)       (26)           (108)           
Proceeds from the redemption of Federal

Home Loan Bank stock 968           150           102             
Net change in loans (16,987)     (36,641)    (19,990)      
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (234)          (734)         (922)           

Net cash from investing activities (22,288)               (46,409)              (22,892)                

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 
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(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in demand, NOW, savings (101,326)            70,923                17,898                 

and money market deposits
Net change in time deposits 32,546                41,494                (10,506)                
Net change in securities sold under repurchase agreements 82                       (417)                   (364)                     
Net change in short term FHLB advances 3,260                  5,000                  12,000                 
Proceeds from long term FHLB advances 13,000                -                         -                           
Repayment of long term FHLB advances -                          (22,000)              (5,658)                  
Issuance of common stock 19,303                -                         -                           
Dividends paid on common stock (1,466)                 (1,210)                (1,008)                  

Net cash from financing activities (34,601)               93,790                12,362                 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (54,950)               52,302                (6,211)                  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 65,556                13,254                19,465                 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10,606$             65,556$             13,254$

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest expense 10,311$              5,187$                3,481$                 
Income taxes, net of refunds 2,495$                1,812$                1,866$                 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 

SUMMIT STATE BANK AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

On January 15, 1999, Summit State Bank (the “Bank”) received authority to transact business as a California state-chartered commercial 
bank and is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the California Department of Financial Institutions and the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank was organized under a charter granted by the Department of Savings and Loan of the State of 
California under the name Summit Savings.  The Bank was incorporated on December 20, 1982. The Bank converted to a federal savings 
bank under a charter granted by the Office of Thrift Supervision on May 24, 1990.  The Bank provides a variety of banking services to 
individuals and businesses in its primary service area of Sonoma County, California.  The Bank’s branch locations include Santa Rosa, 
Rohnert Park and Windsor.  The Bank offers depository and lending services primarily to meet the needs of its business and individual 
clientele.  These services include a variety of transaction, money market, savings and time deposit account alternatives.  The Bank’s 
lending activities are directed primarily towards commercial real estate, construction and business loans.  The Bank utilizes its subsidiary 
Alto Service Corporation for its deed of trust services.

The accounting and reporting policies of Summit State Bank and subsidiary conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and prevailing practices within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Summit State Bank (the “Bank”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Alto 
Service Corporation.  All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions.  These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from these estimates.  The allowance for loan losses and fair values of investment securities and other financial 
instruments are particularly subject to change.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Bank considers cash and due from banks under 90 days and Federal funds 
sold to be cash equivalents.  Generally, Federal funds are sold for one-day periods.  Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and 
deposit transactions, time deposits in banks and short-term borrowings with an original maturity of 90 days or less.  

Time Deposits in Banks

Time deposits in banks are carried at cost.  

Investment Securities

Investments are classified into the following categories:

•	 Available-for-sale securities, reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and 
reported, net of taxes, as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders' equity, net of tax. 

•	 Held-to-maturity securities, which management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, reported at 
amortized cost, adjusted for the accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase and may only change the classification in 
certain limited circumstances.  All transfers between categories are accounted for at fair value.
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Gains or losses on the sale of investment securities are recorded on the trade date and are computed on the specific identification method.  
Interest earned on investment securities is reported in interest income, net of applicable adjustments for accretion of discounts and 
amortization of premiums on the level yield method. 

Investment securities are evaluated for impairment on at least a quarterly basis and more frequently when economic or market conditions 
warrant such an evaluation to determine whether a decline in their value is other than temporary.  Management utilizes criteria such as the 
magnitude and duration of the decline and the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the securities for a period of time 
sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery in fair value, in addition to the reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss 
in value is other than temporary.  The term “other than temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates 
that the prospects for a near-term recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support a realizable 
value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment.  Once a decline in value is determined to be other than temporary, the 
value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings is recognized.

Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

In order to borrow from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco (FHLB), the Bank is required to maintain an investment in the 
capital stock of the FHLB.  The investment is carried at cost and is generally redeemable at par.  Both cash and stock dividends are reported 
as income.  

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market, as determined by 
outstanding commitments from investors.  Net unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation allowance and charged to earnings.  

Loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights retained.  The carrying value of loans sold is reduced by the cost allocated to 
the servicing right.  Gains and losses on loan sales are based on the difference between the selling price, net of loan discount or premium, 
and the carrying value of the related loans sold. 

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity are stated at principal balances 
outstanding, net of deferred loan origination fees and costs and the allowance for loan losses, adjusted for accretion of discounts or 
amortization of premiums.  Interest is accrued daily based upon outstanding loan balances.  However, when, in the opinion of management, 
loans are considered to be impaired and the future collectibility of interest and principal is in serious doubt, loans are placed on nonaccrual 
status and the accrual of interest income is suspended.  Any interest previously accrued, but unpaid, is charged against income.  Payments 
received are applied to reduce principal to the extent necessary to ensure collection.  Subsequent payments on these loans, or payments 
received on nonaccrual loans for which the ultimate collectibility of principal is not in doubt, are applied first to earned but unpaid interest 
and then to principal.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all 
amounts due (including both principal and interest) in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  An impaired loan is 
measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a practical matter, 
at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Substantially all loan origination fees, commitment fees, direct loan origination costs and purchase premiums and discounts on loans are 
deferred and recognized in interest income using the level yield method, to be amortized to interest income over the contractual term of the 
loan.  The unamortized balance of deferred fees and costs is reported as a component of net loans.

The Bank may purchase loans or acquire loans through a business combination for which differences exist between the contractual cash 
flows and the cash flows expected to be collected due, at least in part, to credit quality.  When the Bank acquires such loans, the yield 
that may be accreted (accretable yield) is limited to the excess of the Bank’s estimate of undiscounted cash flows expected to be collected 
over the Bank’s initial investment in the loan.  The excess of contractual cash flows over cash flows expected to be collected may not be 
recognized as an adjustment to yield, loss, or a valuation allowance.  Subsequent increases in cash flows expected to be collected generally 
should be recognized prospectively through adjustment of the loan’s yield over its remaining life.  Decreases in cash flows expected to be 
collected should be recognized as an impairment.  The Bank may not “carry over” or create a valuation allowance in the initial accounting 
for loans acquired under these circumstances.  At December 31, 2006, there were no loans being accounted for under this policy.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained to provide for probable incurred credit losses related to impaired loans and other losses that can 
be expected to occur in the normal course of business.  The determination of the allowance is based on estimates made by management, to 
include consideration of the character of the loan portfolio, specifically identified problem loans, losses inherent in the portfolio taken as a 

whole and economic conditions in the Bank’s service area.

Classified loans and loans determined to be impaired are evaluated by management for specific risk of loss.  In addition, reserve factors 
are assigned to currently performing loans based on management’s assessment of the following for each identified loan type: (1) inherent 
credit risk, (2) historical losses and, (3) where the Bank has not experienced losses, the loss experience of peer banks.  Finally, a residual 
component is maintained to cover the margin of imprecision inherent in the assumptions used to estimate losses.  These estimates are 
particularly susceptible to changes in the economic environment and market conditions.

The Bank’s Board of Directors reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses at least quarterly, to include consideration of the 
relative risks in the portfolio and current economic conditions.  The allowance is adjusted based on that review if, in the judgment of the 
Board of Directors and management, changes are warranted.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses which is charged to expense.  Future additions to the 
allowance are expected to maintain the adequacy of the total allowance after reductions for loan losses and for loan growth. Subsequent 
recoveries of loan losses, if any, are credited to the allowance.  The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 reflects 
management’s estimate of probable incurred credit losses in the portfolio.

Loan Servicing

Servicing rights acquired through 1) a purchase or 2) the origination of loans which are sold or securitized with servicing rights retained 
are recognized as separate assets.  Servicing assets are recorded at the difference between the contractual servicing fees and adequate 
compensation for performing the servicing, and are subsequently amortized in proportion to and over the period of the related net servicing 
income or expense.  Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on current market interest rates.  Servicing assets are 
periodically evaluated for impairment.  For purposes of measuring impairment, servicing assets are stratified based on note rate and term.  
The amount of impairment recognized, if any, is the amount by which the servicing assets for a stratum exceed their fair value.  Servicing 
assets were not considered significant at December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Loans serviced for others include mortgage loans, loans that are guaranteed by the Small Business Administration and loans participated 
with other financial institutions.  These loans are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  The unpaid principal 
balances of loans serviced for others were approximately $14,752,000 and $20,271,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Loan servicing fee income is recorded for fees earned for servicing loans.  The fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding 
principal or a fixed amount per loan and are recorded as income when earned.  The amortization of loan servicing rights is netted against 
loan servicing fee income.  

Goodwill

Goodwill results from business acquisitions and is not amortized, but is periodically evaluated using current facts and circumstances for 
indications that its value may be impaired.  If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in 
the amount of the excess and the carrying value of goodwill is reduced accordingly.  Based on an evaluation performed as of November 
29, 2006, management determined that the fair value of goodwill exceeds its carrying value and no impairment was recognized.  
Goodwill is recorded, net of accumulated amortization, at $4,119,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Other Real Estate

Other real estate includes real estate acquired in full or partial settlement of loan obligations.  When property is acquired, any excess of 
the Bank’s recorded investment in the loan balance and accrued interest income over the estimated fair market value of the property is 
charged against the allowance for loan losses.  A valuation allowance for losses on other real estate, if needed, is maintained to provide 
for temporary declines in value.  The allowance is established through a provision for losses on other real estate which is included in other 
expenses.  Subsequent gains or losses on sales or writedowns resulting from impairment are recorded in other income or expenses as 
incurred.  There was no other real estate held at December 31, 2006 and 2005.  Operating costs after acquisition are expensed.
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Bank Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture, fixtures, and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is 
determined using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.  The useful lives of buildings are estimated 
to be 39 years and furniture, fixtures and equipment are estimated to be 3 to 15 years.  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the 
estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the related lease, whichever is shorter.  When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income for the 
period.  The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred.

The Bank evaluates premises and equipment for financial impairment as events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount of such assets may not be fully recoverable.

Income Taxes

The Bank files its income taxes on a consolidated basis with its subsidiary.  The allocation of income tax expense (benefit) represents each 
entity’s proportionate share of the consolidated provision for income taxes.  Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax 
due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences between the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and their tax basis.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date 
of enactment.  A valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.  On the consolidated 
balance sheet, net deferred tax assets are included in accrued interest receivable and other assets.  

Stock Split

On May 22, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a two-for-one stock split for all common stock outstanding as of June 1, 2006 effected 
in the form of a stock dividend which was paid on June 14, 2006.   All share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted for 
the stock split.  

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS), which excludes dilution, is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by 
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period.  Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that 
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock, such as stock options, result in the issuance of common stock which 
shares in the earnings of the Bank.  Earnings and dividends per share are restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date 
of issuance of the financial statements.  Accordingly, all share and per share information reflects the two-for-one stock split paid on June 
14, 2006.

Stock Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), Share-based Payment, 
using the prospective transition method.  Under this transition method, nonvested equity awards outstanding on December 31, 2006, 
continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method and compensation costs is recognized for all share-based payments vesting 
during 2006 that were granted on or subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the 
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R).  Results for prior periods have not been restated.  During the year ended December 31, 2006, no options 
were awarded by the Bank.  

Prior to 2006, the Bank accounted for this plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting 
for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations.  No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all 
options granted under this plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.  

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), Share-based Payment.  
See “Stock Compensation” above for further discussion of the effect of adopting this standard.

FASB Statement No. 158

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit 
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).  This Statement requires an 
employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as 
an asset or liability in its balance sheet, beginning with year end 2006, and to recognize changes in the funded status in the year in which 
the changes occur through comprehensive income beginning in 2007.  Additionally, defined benefit plan assets and obligations are to be 
measured as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end, starting in 2008.  The Bank does not have any defined benefit pension or other 
plans to which this statement applies.  

SAB 108

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects 
of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (SAB 108), which is effective for 
fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006.  SAB 108 provides guidance on how the effects of prior-year uncorrected financial 
statement misstatements should be considered in quantifying a current year misstatement.  SAB 108 requires public companies to quantify 
misstatements using both an income statement (rollover) and balance sheet (iron curtain) approach and evaluate whether either approach 
results in a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is material.  If prior year errors that 
had been previously considered immaterial now are considered material based on either approach, no restatement is required so long as 
management properly applied its previous approach and all relevant facts and circumstances were considered.  Adjustments considered 
immaterial in prior years under the method previously used, but now considered material under the dual approach required by SAB 108, 
are to be recorded upon initial adoption of SAB 108.  The amount so recorded is shown as a cumulative effect adjustment and is recorded 
in opening retained earnings as of January 1, 2006.  The adoption of SAB 108 had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements for the year ending December 31, 2006.  

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards

New accounting standards have been issued that the Bank does not expect will have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements when adopted in future years or for which the Bank has not yet completed its evaluation of the potential effect upon adoption.  
In general, these standards revise the accounting for derivatives embedded in other financial instruments for 2007, revise the recognition 
and accounting for servicing of financial assets for 2007, establish a hierarchy about the assumptions used to measure fair value for 2008, 
change the recognition threshold and measurement guidance for tax positions that contain significant uncertainty in 2007, revise the accrual 
of post-retirement benefits associated with providing life insurance for 2008, and revise the accounting for cash surrender value for 2007.   

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications were made to the prior year’s presentation to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Operating segments

While the Bank’s chief decision makers monitor the revenue streams of the Bank’s various products and services, operations are managed 
and financial performance is evaluated on a bank-wide basis.  Operating segments are aggregated into one segment as operating results for 
all segments are similar.  

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow:

(in thousands except earnings per share) 2006 2005 2004

Basic
Net income 2,808$    3,131$    2,668$     

Weighted average comon shares outstanding 4,030     3,361     3,361       

Basic earnings per common share 0.70$      0.93$      0.79$       

Diluted
Net income 2,808$    3,131$    2,668$     

Weighted average common shares 
  outstanding for basic earnings per 
  common share 4,030       3,361       3,361       
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercises of 
 stock options 44            17            -               

Average shares and dilutive potential common
 shares 4,074     3,378     3,361       

Diluted earnings per common share 0.69$      0.93$      0.79$       
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2. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

Securities available -for-sale:
Government agencies 22,510$  -$     (318)$    22,192$   
Mortgage-backed securities 2,845      24    -            2,869       
FNMA stock 1             4      -            5              
Other 748         15    -            763          

Total securities available -for-sale 26,104$  43$  (318)$    25,829$   

Securities held-to-maturity:
Government agencies 5,000$    -$     (132)$    4,868$     

Total securities held-to-maturity 5,000$    -$     (132)$    4,868$     

31,104$ 43$ (450)$   30,697$   

Estimated Fair 
Value

Securities available -for-sale:
Government agencies 19,259$  -$     (428)$    18,831$   
FNMA stock 2             3      -            5              
Other 748         -       (37)        711          

Total securities available -for-sale 20,009$  3$    (465)$    19,547$   

Securities held-to-maturity:
Government agencies 5,000$    -$     (160)$    4,840$     

Total securities held-to-maturity 5,000$    -$     (160)$    4,840$     

25,009$ 3$   (625)$   24,387$   

Gross
Unrealized

GainsAmortized Costs

Gross
Unrealized

Losses(in thousands)

Estimated Fair 
Value(in thousands)

2005

2006

Amortized Costs

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses

Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities totaling $(275,000) and $(462,000) are recorded, net of $133,000 and 
$196,000 in tax benefits, as accumulated other comprehensive loss within shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  
There were no sales or transfers of available-for-sale or held-to-maturity investment securities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 
2005 and 2004.

Investment securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005, are summarized and classified according to the duration of 
the loss period as follows:

(in thousands) Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Debt securities:
   Government agencies 2,500$    (1)$            24,560$  (449)$            27,060$  (450)$       

2,500$    (1)$           24,560$ (449)$           27,060$  (450)$

(in thousands) Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Debt securities:
   Government agencies 15,636$  (373)$        7,285$    (215)$            22,921$  (588)$       
   Other 461         (37)            -              -                    461         (37)           

16,097$  (410)$       7,285$   (215)$           23,382$  (625)$

2005

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Losses Unrealized Losses Unrealized Losses

Less than 12 Months

2006

Unrealized Losses Unrealized Losses Unrealized Losses

Total12 Months or More

At December 31, 2006, the Bank held 34 investment securities of which 2 were in a loss position for less than twelve months and 28 were 
in a loss position and had been in a loss position for twelve months or more.  Management periodically evaluates each investment security 
for other than temporary impairment, relying primarily on industry analyst reports and observation of market conditions and interest rate 
fluctuations.  Management believes it will be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the underlying investment 
securities and that the noted decline in fair value is considered temporary and due only to interest rate fluctuations.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2006 by contractual maturity are shown below.  
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right to call or prepay 
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

(in thousands)
Amortized

Cost
Estimated
Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

Within one year 750$           743$           -$               -$

After one year through five years 4,748          4,700          5,000          4,868

After five years through ten years 2,500          2,492          -                 -

After ten years 15,010        14,770        -                 -

23,008        22,705        5,000          4,868

Investment securities not due at a 

     single maturity date:

FNMA stock 1                 5                 -                 -

Mortgage-backed securities and other 3,095          3,119          -                 -

26,104$      25,829$      5,000$        4,868$

Available for Sale Held-to-Maturity

 
Investment securities with amortized costs totaling $18,010,000 and $3,000,000 and estimated market values totaling $17,679,000 and 
$2,933,000 were pledged to secure State of California deposits and securities sold under repurchase agreements at December 31, 2006 and 
2005 (see Note 6).
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3.         LOANS

     

Outstanding loans are summarized as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005

Mortgage loans collateralized by:
    Real estate - Single family units 31,451$     30,763$     
    Real estate Multi-family & Land 24,998       43,465       
Real estate-commercial 102,439     92,198       
Real estate-construction 30,937       23,875       
Commercial 55,814       41,064       
Consumer 4,977         4,181         
Lease financing 6,538         4,756         

257,154     240,302     

Deferred loan fees (558)          (477)          
Allowance for loan losses (3,736)       (3,617)       

252,860$  236,208$

December 31,

    

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Balance, beginning of year 3,617$   3,173$  2,831$    
Provision charged to operations 253        444       444         
Losses charged to allowance (134)       -            (102)       
Recoveries added to allowance -             -            -             
Balance, end of year 3,736$  3,617$ 3,173$

Year Ended December 31,

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, nonaccrual loans totaled $2,383,000 and $713,000 respectively.  Interest foregone on nonaccrual loans 
totaled $111,000, $36,000 and $2,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  Interest income recognized on 
nonaccrual loans was $139,000, $22,000 and $12,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  At December 
31, 2006 and 2005, there were no accruing loans past due 90 days or more.

The recorded investment in loans that were considered to be impaired totaled $2,383,000 at December 31, 2006, with a related allowance 
for loan losses of $375,000.  There was $171,000 considered to be impaired at December 31, 2005 with a related allowance of $171,000.  
The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $923,000 and $600,000. The 
Bank recognized $0, $153,000, and $4,000 in interest income on a cash basis for such loans during December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Salaries and employee benefits totaling $393,000, $455,000 and $323,000 have been deferred as loan origination costs for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Mortgage loans totaling $177,200,000 and $139,406,000 were pledged to secure borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank at 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively (see Note 6 ).

4. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Bank premises and equipment consisted of the following:

(in thousands) 2006 2005

Land 1,184$  1,184$
Building 7,453    7,453
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,650    1,816
Leasehold improvements 254       477       

10,541  10,930

        Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,366)   (2,278)

8,175$ 8,652$

December 31,

Depreciation and amortization included in occupancy and equipment expense totaled $711,000, $633,000 and $510,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

5.  INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Three
months or 

less
Four to six 

months

Seven to 
twelve
months

One to 
three years

More than 
three years Total

Time deposts, $100,000 and over 39,701$    19,098$    11,351$    9,362$      648$         80,160$    
Other time deposits 29,894      14,854      10,606      6,776        207           62,337      

Total 69,595$    33,952$   21,957$   16,138$   855$         142,497$

Interest expense recognized on interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Interest bearing demand 60$       64$        73$       
Savings 968       1,372     424       
Money market 1,330    1,392     681       
Time deposits 5,682    2,656     1,572    

8,040$  5,484$  2,750$

Year Ended December, 31

The Bank accepts deposits related to real estate transactions qualifying under the Internal Revenue Code Section 1031, Tax Deferred 
Exchanges.  These deposits can fluctuate as the sellers of the real property have up to six months to invest in real property to defer taxes on 
property sold.  Deposits related to this activity were $6,173,000, and $93,914,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Average 
balances for these deposits were $25,288,000, $46,591,000 and $11,480,000 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  As of December 
31, 2006 and 2005, time deposits, $100,000 and over included $20,000,000 and $16,000,000 of public deposits from the State of California 
with maturities of three to six months, and $19,000,000 and $504,000 in brokered deposits
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6. BORROWING 

Borrowing Arrangements

The Bank has a total of $19,000,000 in Federal funds lines of credit with four correspondent banks.  The Bank also maintains a letter of 
credit facility totaling $1,000,000 with a correspondent bank to guarantee international letters of credit issued to certain customers.  There 
were guarantees of $233,000 and $201,000 under this facility as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  There were no borrowings 
outstanding under the Federal funds lines of credit as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

In addition, the Bank can borrow from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco on either a short-term or long-term basis up to 
approximately $91,064,000 and $89,632,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Various mortgage loans with a carrying 
value of $177,200,000 and $139,406,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, secured the borrowing arrangement.  

The Bank also enters into the sales of securities under agreements to repurchase which generally mature within one day.  The securities 
underlying these agreements are carried as available-for-sale investment securities.  At December 31, 2006 and 2005, these securities had 
market values of $1,480,000 and $2,933,000 and amortized costs of $1,500,000 and $3,000,000, respectively.

 
Borrowings included the following advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco and securities sold under repurchase 
agreements:

(in thousands) Amount Rate Maturity Amount Rate Maturity

Securities sold under repurchase 
agreements 257$         2.25% January 2007 175$        2.25% January 2006
FHLB advance 8,260        5.09% January 2007 5,000       3.25% February 2006

Total short-term borrowings 8,517        5,175       

FHLB advance 7,600        4.28% July 2007 7,600       4.28% July 2007
FHLB advance 1,600        2.66% May 2008 1,600       2.66% May 2008
FHLB advance 5,000        5.38% June 2008 1,000       6.52% December 2010
FHLB advance 5,000        5.36% June 2008
FHLB advance 3,000        4.97% September 2008
FHLB advance 1,000        6.52% December 2010
Total long-term borrowings 23,200      10,200

Total borrowings 31,717$    15,375$

2006 2005

Year Ended December 31, 

FHLB advances are secured by various mortgage loans, with interest due monthly and principal due at maturity.

7. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Federal State Total
2006

Current 1,592$      650$         2,242$      
Deferred (127)          (62)            (189)          

     Provision for income taxes 1,465$     588$        2,053$      

Federal State Total
2005

Current 1,807$      627$         2,434$      
Deferred (194)          (51)            (245)          

     Provision for income taxes 1,613$     576$        2,189$      

Federal State Total
2004

Current 1,668$      575$         2,243$      
Deferred (290)          (87)            (377)          

     Provision for income taxes 1,378$     488$        1,866$      

(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following:

  

2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:
     Allowance for loan losses 1,557$  1,436$
     Future benefit of state tax deduction 89         113       
     Bank premises and equipment 184       149       
     Unrealized losses on available-for-sale
       investment securities 113       195       
     Other accruals 108       65         

Total deferred tax assets 2,051$  1,958$

Deferred tax liabilities:
     Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends (170)      (218)      
     Loan fees (7)          
     Prepaid expenses and other (138)      (100)      

Total deferred tax liabilities (308)      (325)      

Net deferred tax assets 1,743$ 1,633$

December 31, 
(in thousands)
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The provision for income taxes differs from amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rates to operating income 
before income taxes.  The significant items comprising these differences for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 consisted 
of the following:

(in thousands) Amount Rate % Amount Rate % Amount Rate %

Federal income tax
    expense, at 
    statutory rate 1,653$  34.0% 1,809$  34.0% 1,542$   34.0%
State franchise tax
    expense, net of 
    Federal tax effect 388       8.0% 380       7.1% 324        7.1%
Other 12         0.2% -            -             -             -            

Total income tax expense 2,053$  42.2% 2,189$ 41.1% 1,866$   41.1%

2006 2005 2004

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Bank leases various equipment and branch offices in Santa Rosa, Rohnert Park, Petaluma and Windsor under noncancelable operating 
leases.  These leases include various renewal and termination options and rental adjustment provisions. Rental expense included in 
occupancy and equipment expense totaled $212,000, $197,000 and $200,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.   Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

  

December 31, (in thousands)
2007 233$                    
2008 196                      
2009 138                      
2010 72                        
2011 72                        

711$                    

The Bank entered into operating leases with third parties during 2006 and 2005 for office space in its building.  The leases are for 
periods from five to seven years and contain a provision for one five year renewal option.  Rental income totaled $658,000, $558,000 
and $303,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.  Minimum future rental income from these operating 
leases are as follows:

   

Year Ending
December 31,

2007 585$    
2008 603      
2009 189      
2010 196      
2011 202      

1,775$

(in thousands)

Federal Reserve Requirements

Banks are required to maintain reserves with the Federal Reserve Bank equal to a percentage of their reservable deposits less vault cash.  
The reserve requirement was $369,000 as of December 31, 2006.  There were no reserve requirements as of December 31, 2005.  

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business in order to meet the financing 
needs of its clients and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.  These financial instruments consist of commitments to 
extend credit and standby letters of credit.  These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess 
of the amount recognized on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party for commitments to extend credit and standby letters 
of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.  The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments 
and standby letters of credit as it does for loans included on the consolidated balance sheet.

The contractual amounts of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at year end were as follows:

Fixed Rate
Variable

Rate Fixed Rate
Variable

Rate

Commitments to make loans 1,579$      3,527$        200$         2,920$        
Unused lines of credit 9,409        20,956        12,789      20,594        
Standby letters of crredit 172           1,847          172           259             

December 31,

(in thousands) 20052006

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 30 days or less.  The fixed rate loan commitments have interest rates ranging 
from 5.9% to 9.2% and maturities ranging from 1 year to 30 years.  

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a client as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.  
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  Since some of the 
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements.  The Bank evaluates each client’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.  The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed 
necessary by the Bank upon extension of the credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower.  Collateral held relating 
to these commitments varies, but may include securities, equipment, accounts receivable, inventory and deeds of trust on residential real 
estate and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a client to a third party.  The 
credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to clients.  The fair value 
of the liability related to these standby letters of credit, which represents the fees received for issuing the guarantees, was not significant 
at December 31, 2006 and 2005.  The Bank recognizes these fees as revenue over the term of the commitment or when the commitment 
is used.

At December 31, 2006, real estate loan commitments represent 58% of total commitments and are generally secured by property with a loan-
to-value ratio not to exceed 80%.  Commercial loan commitments represent approximately 35% of total commitments and are generally 
secured by collateral other than real estate or are unsecured.  Credit card and other unsecured commitments represent approximately 7% of 
total commitments.  The majority of the Bank’s commitments have variable interest rates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Bank’s business activity is primarily with clients located within Northern California.  Although the Bank has a diversified loan 
portfolio, a significant portion of its clients’ ability to repay loans is dependent upon the real estate market and various economic factors 
within Sonoma County.  Generally, loans are secured by various forms of collateral.  The Bank’s loan policy requires sufficient collateral 
be obtained as necessary to meet the Bank’s relative risk criteria for each borrower.  The Bank’s collateral consists primarily of real estate, 
accounts receivable, inventory and other financial instruments.

Correspondent Banking Agreements

The Bank maintains funds on deposit with other federally insured financial institutions under correspondent banking agreements.  Uninsured 
deposits totaled $1,400,000 at December 31, 2006.
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Contingencies

The Bank is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business.  In the opinion of management, the 
amount of ultimate liability with respect to such actions will not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the 
Bank.

9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Regulatory Capital

The Bank is subject to certain regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  Failure 
to meet these minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, 
if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s 
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  The Bank’s capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios 
of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier 1 capital to average assets.  Each of these components is defined in the 
regulations.  Management believes that the Bank met all its capital adequacy requirements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective 
action.  To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage 
ratios as set forth below.  There are no conditions or events since the last notification by the FDIC that management believes have changed 
the Bank’s category.

The Bank’s actual and required capital amounts and ratios consisted of the following:

(in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Tier 1 Leverage Ratio

Summit State Bank 43,753$   14.3% 23,083$  6.7%

Minumum requirement for "Well-Capitalized" institiution 15,313$   5.0% 17,184$  5.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement 12,251$   4.0% 13,747$  4.0%

Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio

Summit State Bank 43,753$   16.8% 23,083$  8.9%

Minumum requirement for "Well-Capitalized" institiution 15,671$   6.0% 15,505$  6.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement 10,448$   4.0% 10,338$  4.0%

Total Risk-Based Captial Ratio

Summit State Bank 47,026$   18.0% 26,321$  10.2%

Minumum requirement for "Well-Capitalized" institiution 26,119$   10.0% 25,842$  10.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement 20,895$   8.0% 20,674$  8.0%

2006 2005

Dividends

Upon declaration by the Board of Directors, all shareholders of record will be entitled to receive dividends.  The California Financial Code 
restricts the total dividend payment of any bank in any calendar year to the lesser of (1) the bank’s retained earnings or (2) the bank’s net 
income for its last three fiscal years, less distributions made to shareholders during the same three-year period.  At December 31, 2006, 
retained earnings of $4,923,000 were free of such restrictions.

Stock Options

In 1999, the Bank established a stock option plan for which 100,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance to directors and 
officers under nonstatutory agreements.  The plan requires that the option price may not be less than the fair market value of the stock at 
the date the option is granted, and the stock must be paid in full at the time the option is exercised.  Payment in full for the option price 
must be made in cash or with Bank common stock previously acquired by the optionee and held by the optionee for a period of at least six 
months.  The options expire on dates determined by the Board of Directors, but not later than ten years from the date of grant.  Options 
vest over a three to five year period. 

A summary of the activity in the stock option plan for 2006 follows:

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted Average 
Remaining

Contractual Term
Aggregate

Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at beginning of the year 84,000      6.03$        -                           -$                        
Granted -                -                -                           -                          
Exercised -                -                -                           -                          
Forfeited or expired (3,334)      7.48$        -                           -                          
Outstanding at the end of year 80,666    5.97$       3.8 years 547,722$

Exercisable at end of year 73,999    5.85$       3.5 years 511,333$

Information related to the stock option plan during each year follows:

2006 2005 2004

Intrinsic value of options exercised -$          -$                -$                
Cash received from option exercises -            -                  -                  
Tax benefit realized from option exercises -            -                  -                  

As of December 31, 2006, there was $0 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested stock options granted under the 
Plan.  

. Initial Public Offering 

On July 13, 2006, the Bank commenced an underwritten initial public offering (IPO) and sold 1,432,700 shares of common stock at an 
offering price of $15 per share.  Net proceeds from the IPO after the underwriters discount and other expense was $19,303,000.  The 
common stock of the Bank was listed on the Nasdaq Global market under the trading symbol of SSBI.
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10. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses consisted of the following:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Data processing 526$      609$     419$      
Professional fees 268        337       235        
Director fees and expenses 223        262       221        
Advertising and promotion 382        217       210        
Deposit and other insurance premimums 179        149       140        
Telephone and postage 105        146       126        
Other expenses 530        492       285        

2,213$  2,212$ 1,636$

Year Ended December 31, 

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

401(k) Employee Savings Plan

The Bank has a 401(k) Employee Savings Plan (the “Plan”), qualified under the Internal Revenue Code (Code), whereby participants may 
defer a percentage of their compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed under the Code.  Bank contributions, as determined 
by the Board of Directors, are discretionary and vest immediately.  Contributions by the Bank totaled $61,000, $34,000 and $42,000 for 
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the normal course of business, the Bank enters into loans with related parties, including executive officers and directors.  The 
following is a summary of the aggregate activity involving related party borrowers during 2006:

(in thousands)

788$         

New borrowings 131           
Amounts repaid (458)          

Balance, December 31, 2006 461$

Undisbursed commitments to related
     parties, December 31, 2006 138$

Balance, January 1, 2006

A significant shareholder of the Bank is also a significant shareholder of three other banks (“affiliated banks’).  During the years ended 
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank purchased participations in loans originated by the affiliated banks.  As of December 31, 2006 and 
2005, the outstanding balances of these participations purchased were approximately $13,934,000 and $9,436,000 respectively.  The Bank 
also sold participation interests in loans to these affiliated banks.  As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the outstanding balances of these 
participations sold were approximately $2,291,000 and $8,886,000 respectively.  

13. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is reported in addition to net income for all periods presented.  Comprehensive income is a more inclusive 
financial reporting methodology that includes disclosure of other comprehensive income (loss) that historically has not been recognized 
in the calculation of net income.  Unrealized gains and losses on the Bank’s available-for-sale investment securities are included in other 
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Total comprehensive income and the components of accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) are presented in the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Other comprehensive income (loss) net of  related taxes were attributable to available for sale securities and are as follows:

Before
Tax

Tax Benefit 
(Expense) After Tax

(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31, 2006

Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains on available- 
     for-sale investment securities 187$      (63)$          124$

For the year ended December 31, 2005

Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized holding losses on available-
     for-sale investment securities (458)$    194$         (264)$

For the year ended December 31, 2004

Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized holding losses available- 
     for-sale investment securities (95)$      39$           (56)$

14. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Estimated fair values are disclosed for financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value.  These estimates are made at 
a specific point in time based on relevant market data and information about the financial instruments.  These estimates do not reflect any 
premium or discount that could result from offering the Bank’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument for sale at one time, nor 
do they attempt to estimate the value of anticipated future business related to the instruments.  In addition, the tax ramifications related to 
the realization of unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of 
these estimates.

Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Bank’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding 
current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other factors.  These estimates are subjective in nature 
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision.  Changes in assumptions 
could significantly affect the fair values presented.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank to estimate the fair value of its financial instruments at December 31, 2006 
and 2005:

Cash and cash equivalents:  For cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amount is estimated to be fair value.

Time deposits in banks:  The fair value for time deposits in banks is estimated by discounting their future cash flows using interest rates 
being offered at each reporting date for instruments with similar remaining maturities.

Investment securities:  For investment securities, fair values are based on quoted market prices, where available.  If quoted market prices 
are not available, fair values are estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities and indications of value provided by brokers.  
The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.  

Loans, net of allowance:  For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on 
carrying values.  Fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates being offered at each 
reporting date for loans with similar terms to borrowers of comparable creditworthiness. The allowance for loan losses is considered to be 
a reasonable estimate of discount for credit risk.  The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock:  For Federal Home Loan Bank stock, cost approximates fair value.
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Deposits:  The fair values for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date represented 
by their carrying amount.  Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis using interest 
rates being offered at each reporting date for certificates with similar remaining maturities.  The carrying amount of accrued interest 
payable approximates its fair value.

Short-term borrowings and long-term debt:  The fair values of fixed rate borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis 
that applies interest rates being offered on similar debt instruments.  The fair values of variable rate borrowings are based on carrying value.  
The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates its fair value. 

Commitments to fund loans/standby letters of credit:  The fair values of commitments are estimated using the fees currently charged to enter 
into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the counterparties.  
The differences between the carrying value of commitments to fund loans or standby letters of credit and their fair value are not significant 
and, therefore, are not included in the following table.

(in thousands)
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks 10,606$    10,606$     2,186$      2,186$      
Federal funds sold -                -                 63,370      63,370      
Time deposits in banks 457           454            1,635        1,624        
Investment securities 30,829      30,697       24,547      24,387      
Loans, net of allowance 252,860    259,534     236,208    238,971    
Investment in FHLB stock 1,699        1,699         1,451        1,451        
Accrued interest receivable 1,662        1,662         1,408        1,408        

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 232,974$  232,609$   301,754$  301,114$

257           257            175           175           
FHLB advances 31,460      31,398       15,200      15,132      
Accrued interest payable 240           240            1,128        1,128        

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On January 29, 2007, the Board of Directors declared a $.09 per share cash dividend to shareholders of record at the close of business on 
February 9, 2007, to be paid on or about February 21, 2007.

16. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

 

(in thousands except EPS data)
Interest
income

Net Interest 
Income Net Income Basic Diluted

First quarter 4,871$          2,802$                750$           0.22$        0.22$        
Second quarter 4,920            2,692                  683             0.20          0.20          
Third quarter 5,255            2,827                  734             0.16          0.16          
Fourth quarter 5,408            2,712                  641             0.13          0.13          

Interest
income

Net Interest 
Income Net Income Basic Diluted

First quarter 3,383$          2,304$                618$           0.18$        0.18$        
Second quarter 3,818            2,591                  770             0.23          0.23          
Third quarter 4,459            2,700                  823             0.24          0.24          
Fourth quarter 5,008            2,791                  920             0.27          0.27          

2006

2005

Earnings Per Share

Earnings Per Share

THIS STATEMENT HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED, OR CONFIRMED FOR ACCURACY OR 
RELEVANCE, BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION.
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